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RFP#8283 Security Guard Services 

Questions and Answers 
 

1. Who is the current incumbent? G4S Secure Solutions (USA) Inc. 

2. When was the current incumbent awarded the contract? March, 2013 

3. Copy of current contract? See attached. 

4. What is the estimated usage (number of annual hours) of prior contract? The RFP states the specific 

hours per week for each site, for either armed or unarmed guards, so the proposers can calculate this for 

themselves.    

5. What is the estimated total number of annual hours for this contract?  See question four. 

6. What is the current bill rate?  See hourly rate Table following the list of Q&A. 

7. What was the contract amount spent last year?  Approximately $900,000 for all Regional San and SASD 

work sites mentioned in RFP.#8283. 

8. Are there any additional services that may be needed that are not listed in the RFP?  None are 

envisioned right now but the Districts together own a large number of offsite pump stations or other 

facilities, where there may be a need to react to a new security issue by adding Guards or other services, 

the most recent service minor addition being adding a drive-by service for a facility that is currently 

having homeless problems.  There are no substantial changes currently envisioned for security services. .   

9. Is there any minimum wage/pay?  The client’s current minimum hourly wage rates are stated on the 

Vendor Price sheet on page 51.  

10. Is there any prevailing wage, living wage ordinance, state or local mandated wage, contract specific 

wage, or collective bargaining agreement? No to each item in the question, with the exception that the 

Vendor Price Sheet on page 51 provides the Districts’ minimum hourly rates for unarmed or armed 

guards.        

11. Who is the incumbent? See question 1 

12. What are the current billing rates?  See question 6 

13. Which facilities require vehicles?  Only the Plant armed guard has vehicles and this is provided by 

Regional San. SASD provides a standard golf cart at the two Corp Yard sites.    

14. Any 4-wheel drive vehicles? No 

15. How many miles per day?  Estimate 25 to 40 miles per day; please note that all mileage information is in 

reference to a Regional San vehicle provided for the armed guard at the Plant.   

16. Would District compensate the contractor for employee’s onsite meal period, since the guards must stay 

onsite throughout lunch period, meal period shall be considered an “on duty” meal.  
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“the employer must pay one additional hour of pay at the employee's regular rate of pay for each 

workday that the meal period is not provided.  This additional hour is not counted as hours worked for 

purposes of overtime calculations”. This is an area which is currently under review by Regional San and 

SASD, who are working with the incumbent security service provider to look at all available options for 

complying with the new labor laws referred to here, which mandate a 30 minute work-free lunch period 

for guards.  Regional San and SASD will discuss solutions for how this law can be implemented at each 

of the work sites referred to in the RFP when the company interviews are held following the Phase II 

evaluation.   

17. What is the current hourly pay rate (not billing rate) for current Armed employees? See question 6. 

18. How can we incorporate a billing rate increase that corresponds with the state-mandated minimum wage 

increase each year of the contract? The Districts are paying above minimum wage at all sites and for all 

guards.  The Districts will discuss Incentive programs or other methods for ensuring that annual pay 

increases occur, when Company interviews are held following the Phase II evaluation.  

19.  How many vehicles are currently in use to provide service at the locations covered by the current 

contract? See question 13. 

20.  Have sites or patrols been added under this RFP which would make the number of vehicles increase?  

No.   

21. If so by how many vehicles? N/A.  

22.  How many miles do you estimate will be driven in the first year of the contract? See question 15.   

23. Is this a Union Contract? If so, with which Union do Regional San and SASD have an agreement? No. 

24. What is the current base rate and where does it come from, e.g. CAL HR rates a State of CA 

Methodology, Living Wage, Minimum Wage, Prevailing Wage, or Agency's own calculated rate? The 

Districts intent during the current Contract was to increase pay rates to levels a little higher than normal 

in order to be able to retain good quality guards. The Districts have set their own calculated rates in 

order to accomplish this.  

25. Will agency provide a list of guard seniority and current rate per person without the names so Bidders 

can retain the guards as required in the contract and bid appropriately to cover the current wages? 

In the recent San Francisco Guard RFP's 86602 and 86603 lists with no names and current rate of pay 

plus healthcare elections, meaning # of dependents for premium calculations were provided for guard 

retention reasons. The Districts will provide such information only to the successful company selected 

during the Phase 3 evaluation. 

26. What is the budget for the contract? See question 6 and 7.     

27. What company is the current Provider of these services? See question 1 

https://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/Glossary.asp?Button1=R#regular%20rate%20of%20pay
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/Glossary.asp?Button1=H#hours%20worked
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28. Is there a Special CPR course for First Responders that Regional San and SASD require? Who is the 

current provider used for these certifications? See CPR item on page 21 of the RFP; the company must 

provide this training.  The Districts do not require the guards to act as First Responders in the sense that 

police or fire are typically considered to be “first responders”.   

29. Are there any special Wastewater treatment plant or Corporation Yard CALOSHA training that 

Regional San and SASD require? The Wastewater Plant provides training as well as Post Orders so the 

Armed Guards can work at the Plant in a safe manner. The Plant training covers all possible hazards and 

related safety concerns. The unarmed guards receive site-specific training at each site, which includes 

any known hazards.   

30. How many fines or liquidated damages were there in the provision of the current service, if any? Over a 

five year Contract period, there have been no fines or LDs. 

31. What Provider is currently doing the Physical Exams? Each Security Service provides their own 

evaluation; the RFP lists the minimum qualifications beginning on page 19 

32. What is the quality of the cell phone services in and around the facilities? This will determine the type of 

equipment we use to serve the contract should we get the award.  Cell service is available at all work 

sites.  Some of the buildings at District facilities may require the guard to go outside to get better 

reception.  Over the last five years for the current Contract, this has not been an issue. 

33. Who will receive any suggestions on Post Orders from our staff? How do we contact them? The 

Districts’ security coordinator for each Regional San or SASD work site will work with the company to 

help improve the site-specific Post Orders and the successful Proposer will receive all pertinent contact 

information for interactions like this.  

34. Are the armed guards currently working under contract meeting the requirements being called for in the 

RFP? 

A. If yes, can the current guards be considered for employment by the new contractor considering that 

they meet the requirements?  Most of the armed guards meet the requirements being asked for in the 

RFP, however, the successful company will need to evaluate this for themselves.   

B. If no, why are the requirements being implemented? This RFP is an upgrade to the Plant’s Armed 

Guard Service.  Regional San management has determined that armed guards with the “prior 

experience” as requested have proven to be better equipped to able to handle the nature and variety of 

security concerns which the Plant has experienced, compared to armed guards who have little to no prior 

experience.  
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35. Can you specify any contracts within the Sacramento area in which armed guards are required to follow 

similar minimum qualifications? It is in the interest of Regional San to upgrade the armed guard at the 

Plant and the response to the RFP will determine whether there are local security service vendors who 

can provide this service, or not.  Regional San does not know the answer to this question until the Phase 

I evaluation is complete.       

36. How many of the current security team do you think will transition over in percent? Between 75 and 100 

percent.   

37. Some of the officers get paid meal breaks, this opens up security companies to litigation, is there a way 

the officers can take an up paid meal break and leave their posts? See question 16 and be aware that the 

statements about the work sites being a “paid working lunch” will be removed in the next RFP 

Addendum.  

38. The startup dates and the intent to award are within three weeks of each other, is the district open to 

allowing a 4 weeks startup as this is an industry standard?  Yes, the time between Contract Award and 

start of work has been extended to more than one month; see addendum 2. 

39. How are breaks currently being conducted at the locations which do not say they are a paid meal break? 

Complying with new labor laws regarding lunch breaks is a work-in-progress; please see question 16 

and 38. 

40. What caliber of weapon is acceptable to the district for the armed positions? The Districts do not specify 

a caliber and leave this up to the company to determine. Each guard must be qualified to use the caliber 

of the weapon which they own, or, the caliber which is specified by the company.   

41. Why is there a need for armed officers at the Laguna Station Rd Location? This is the third largest 

wastewater treatment plant in California and there are dangerous chemicals on site, as well as a large 

amount of acreage and facilities to patrol.  Armed Guard service at the Plant began in 2014 following 

recommendations to Regional San management from Federal security Agencies in late 2013.   

42. What is the Districts stance on THC now that CA has legalized Marijuana? We will follow the policy of 

the company selected.   

43. Will the District allow the contractor to provide roving officers to break the officers so they can leave 

the site and have a meal break and therefore comply with the upcoming legal changes before they take 

affect?  This is one of a few options for complying with new labor laws; please see questions 16 and 38. 

44. Are any vehicle needed? If so please tell us how many, the number of miles per year and if these will be 

a separate line item or should be included in the bill rate? Please see question 13.  

45. Are radios provided by the district? Yes, but only at the Plant.  
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46. What guard tour system is currently being used and will the new company need to provide one? No tour 

systems are being used at any of the work sites.   

47. What incident management system is currently being used and will the new company need to provide 

one? The Districts use the NIMS/SEMS emergency response methods and the Districts have respective 

Emergency Response Plans, or, Continuity of Operations Plans which address emergency event 

response at all facilities.      

48. Are there any current open posts?  Assuming this is asking if there are any unfilled positions at the work 

sites, the answer is no.  However see question 36, as there may be a few open positions with the new 

Contract.   

49. What is the current pay rates?  See question 6. And does that include healthcare?  No, only the base 

hourly wage rates are shown.   

50. What are the current challenges or issues the district is having from the security program? The security 

program is currently working well at all work sites at this time.  The challenges at the Plant have to do 

with the encroaching homeless population at various offsite facilities, and, from residents in a new 

growth area (Delta Shores) which is adjacent to Plant property and may become a source of additional 

intrusions or trespassers in the coming years.   

51. Are the officers subject to a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) or union? No.  

52. Can you please provide some clarification on the requesting pricing in the RFP?  On page 18 of the RFP, 

it states: 

"Regional San will determine the hourly pay rate for unarmed guards and the contractor will determine 

the base pay rate. Base pay equals hourly wage plus health benefit allowance. Health benefit allowance 

per hour to assigned employees is not necessary if contractor provides adequate employer-paid health 

benefits to those assigned employees. Nevertheless, the base pay, which includes the health benefit 

allowance per hour, will be used to determine the billing rate per hour – hourly rate plus your markup 

rate."   

However, later in the document, on page 51 (Vendor Price Proposal), it asks for both an "Hourly Rate" 

and "Total Hourly Including % mark-up". It appears that the term Hourly Rate is being used 

interchangeably to mean both pay rate and bill rate, but the term "billing rate" is not used in the far right 

column of the Vendor Price Sheet. Can you please clarify exactly what SASD/SRCSD are looking for in 

each of these columns, so that we can provide an accurate response?  

Pages 18 and 51 have been amended based on the comments here.  Please see Addendum #3 when it is  

issued.. 

53. What is the current Billing rate? See question 6.   
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54. Retention of current employees:  Is it the desire of SRCSD & SASD for proposing vendors to retain any 

current employees (officers or supervisor) serving facilities under the current contract? Yes, this is the 

desire of the Districts and is the main reason why the Districts pay a little more, that is, to be able to give 

the guards an incentive to work at the Districts’ sites.  Please see question 36. 

55. Will SRCSD & SASD provide incumbent wage and tenure information so that all proposing vendors 

can account for the costs associated with retaining these individuals associated with their tenure at the 

facilities (for vacation benefit tiers) and wages?  Tenure restarts at a new and higher pay rate for both 

unarmed and armed guards, with the new Contract. A list of all guards and their respective wage rates, 

which may reflect prior incentive programs, will be provided to the successful company following the 

Phase 3 evaluation. Also see question 6. 

56. What are the current bill rate for the program? See question 6 

57. For Vehicle pricing options will SRCSD & SASD please clarify the exact vehicle specification’s desired 

on the vehicles;  

Confirm Number of Vehicle’s required? Zero.  

Estimated Annual Mileage? N/A 

Desired equipment for the vehicles? (ex. light bars, radio mounts, security markings on the exterior) N/A 

Desired type “make/models”?  N/A 

Will SRCSD & SASD be providing the fuel or if the contractor will be responsible for fuel 

If contractor is responsible for fuel what would be the preferred billing method for fuel and 

maintenance?  One vehicle and all fuel is provided by Regional San at the Plant for armed guard use.  

58. Will SRCSD & SASD provide the total number of hours billed in 2017 for Security Services? See 

question 4.  

59. Will SRCSD & SASD provide the total number of hours billed in 2017 for “as-needed” or “special 

event coverage”.  In 2017 the Districts had zero hours worked in the “special event coverage” category.   

The Dwight Gate had one additional (as –needed) day shift guard added in mid-2017, based on 

increasing construction traffic, as stated in the RFP, adding 40 hours per work week for approximately 

three quarters of a calendar year.   

60. Will SRCSD & SASD provide the current schedule for the contracted security services? Refer to 

specific work site descriptions for work hours and shift start times.   

61. Training: To ensure the appropriate amount of “General Site Training” is provided to each officer, will 

SRCSD & SASD specify the training hours required for each location for a new officer? See page 21 of 

the RFP which addresses general Training.  Also please see question 36.  If the majority current guards 
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are retained then this minimizes the need for site-specific training, and, provides experienced guards 

who can train any new guards who begin working at the Districts’ site as part of a new Contract.  

62. Is this training time billable? Company required training prior to a guard working at a District facility is 

not billable. Any training for new guards which needs to be conducted at the work sites is billable. 

63. Can this training be conducted on post (during billable hours)? Site-specific training conducted at the 

work site is billable as stated in question 62.  

64. Can ongoing training be conducted while on post during billable hours? Yes.   

65. Will SRCSD & SASD clarify what training can be conducted while on post during billable hours, and 

what training needs to be the financial responsibility of the proposing supplier? See questions 61 

through 64.   

66. Understating that SRCSD & SASD is considered a critical infrastructure, is SRCSD & SASD requiring 

any additional regulatory training “such as CFATS”?  No.  The Plant has specific armed guard training 

which includes procedures for emergency response, related to each kind of chemical on site, so that the 

guards are qualified to safely work in those areas and to respond in the event an emergency occurs.   

67. How should the proposed vendors submit their questions/exceptions to the Master Service Agreement? 

In the proposal as an attachment?  Please see Addendum 2. 

68. SRCSD & SASD mention 13 holidays, are these being direct billed for officers who work on the 

associated holidays? Yes.  

69. Are officers who do not work a shift paid at the holiday rate? No. A guard must work on the Holiday to 

receive holiday pay.   

70. Are there any other equipment or training that will be direct billed or does SRCSD & SASD required all 

to be built into a fully loaded rate on the Vendor Price Sheet?  No other equipment or training is 

envisioned than what is described in questions 61 through 66, and, in the RFP.  

71. Will SRCSD & SASD please specify what type of Fire Arms and Equipment are required for this 

procurement? See question 40. 

72. In our experience, armed officer engagements also require handcuffs as a means to detain individuals 

that cannot be verbally deescalated or pose an imminent danger to life.  

Will SRCSD & SASD specify if handcuffs are a requirement of this contract? Yes 

If yes, will SRCSD & SASD specify that a proper certification program must be offered to officers 

servicing this contract (such as PATH handcuff certification)? Yes, PATH is sufficient and is part of the 

normal process for getting a Guard Card. 

73. Will SRCSD & SASD please specify the specific types of uniforms required? See page 18 of the RFP. 
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74. It is noted under the Armed officer section that 2 weeks’ vacation is paid per year to each officer, is this 

also true for the unarmed officers?  That text was a mistake and has been removed; please see 

Addendum #3.  

75. Is there a subcontract expectation in this RFP? No.  

76. If so is there a designated percentage? N/A. 

77. Is the 24 hour emergency time billed at 1.5%?  No.  The Company is expected to provide 24-hour 

supervisory activity for all shifts, in case a guard is sick, or, for other reasons cannot make it to work. 

This is not considered to be “emergency time” nor has it been referred to that way in the RFP.  In the 

past five years the Districts have not paid for “emergency time”. 

78. On page 18 of the RFP it mentions “contract must be able to dispatch a mobile unit to respond upon a 

moment’s notice…”, will SRCSD & SASD please clarify what a moment’s notice means in specific 

time? A “moment’s notice” is a reasonable response time which the company can provide based on the 

assigned company supervisory practices, and, distance to the work sites for the supervisors or substitute 

staff.   

79. RFP Section 1.2.4 on page 4 defines the bidder’s response as signed and sealed document.  Are any of 

the bid forms on pages 48-51 or any other part of the bidder response required to be affixed with the 

company seal? No. 

80. We note that one of the Contractor’s duties on RFP page 8 is to “Test the flushing system before 7:00 

am.” What is entailed in that duty? The guard flips a switch and the septic system flushes automatically; 

this is a check to make sure the flushing system is working, and, is not physically demanding.   

81. Are the Districts exempt from payment of State and local sales and use taxes? No. 

82. Lastly, due to the quick turnaround time from answers to questions and the upcoming holiday will 

SRCSD & SASD consider extending the due date to accommodate information gathering and preparing 

a quality response for SRCSD & SASD to review?  Yes. See Addendum #2. 
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Answer to Question #6–  

Table of Current Unarmed and Armed Guard hourly rates hold – wage rate only shown 

Unarmed Guards  

Security Officer (Holiday)  $19.13 

Security Officer (Regular)  $12.75  

Site Lead (Holiday)               $20.62 

Site Lead (Regular)               $13.751 

Armed Guards  

Site Supv (Holiday)               $24.75 

Site Supv (Regular)               $16.50  

Non-Supv (Holiday)                       $24.00 

Non-Supv (Regular)                       $16.00 

 

Please note that the wage rates shown here reflect the current Contract for armed guard security services, which 

Contract does not have the same requirement for prior experience as stated on page 7 of RFP #8283.        

 

 

 

 


